
Milford Township Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Minutes 
May 21, 2025 - 7:00 pm 

 
Attendance: Supervisors present: John Mininger, Chair; Christian Haberle, Vice Chair; and Member Charles 
Strunk. Staff present: Jeffrey Vey, Township Manager; Devan Ambron, Assistant Manager/Secretary/Treasurer; 
Todd Baldwin, Pennoni, and Kate Harper, Timoney Knox.  
 
Call to Order: Mr. Mininger called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Approval of Minutes: Mr. Strunk made a MOTION to approve the April 1, 2025 and April 28, 2025 Meeting 
Minutes as presented. Mr. Haberle seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Financial Report: The Treasurer’s Report was labeled incorrectly on the agenda. The Treasurer’s report reviewed 
for approval was March 2025 not February 2025 as noted. Mr. Strunk made a MOTION to approve the current bills 
list and Treasurer’s Report of March 2025.  Mr. Haberle seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Subdivision/Land Development: 
Milford Village Stonewall Apartments, Final Land Development Plan, Route 663, TMP No. 23-010-175-001. 
Mr. Roger Hiser of LifeQuest and Mr. Del Markward of MVP 663 1, LLP were in attendance representing the 
proposal, the construction of 262 multi-family units, 4,950 square foot club house, and associated improvements. 
Mrs. Harper stated that a draft resolution for Final Plan Approval had been distributed to the applicant prior to the 
meeting. She noted that there are still some questions that need to be addressed, primarily concerning transportation 
issues. Mr. Haberle requested clarification on which roadways are being proposed as public roads—specifically 
Abby Lane, LifeQuest Drive, or Weeping Willow Drive. Mr. Markward responded that Weeping Willow Drive is 
not being proposed as a public road; however, LifeQuest Road (north section) and Abby Lane are proposed for 
public dedication. Mrs. Harper explained that once roads are designated as public, the responsibility for maintenance 
and snow removal falls to the township. Mr. Haberle added that Abby Lane, in particular, would be a suitable 
candidate for dedication as a public road. There were questions regarding the roundabout at Abby Lane and Mill Hill 
Court. After discussion with township staff and the traffic engineer, it was determined that keeping the roundabout 
on Abby Lane is the best course of action. A discussion will be necessary to determine how the maintenance of the 
public road will be handled going forward. Mr. Mininger stated that he agrees. He believes that designating Abby 
Lane as a public road makes sense. Regarding the extension of LifeQuest Drive, he expressed that while he has no 
objection to dedicating the road to the township, he does not see the same level of public benefit as with Abby Lane. 
If LifeQuest were to maintain that roadway privately, he would be comfortable with that arrangement. Mr. 
Markward said that will be in front of the board when the roadway is dedicated, at that point it could be public and 
maintained by them. He noted that Abby Lane is part of the development plan currently under review by the board, 
and the applicant is prepared to proceed with construction, including the roundabout as shown on the submitted plan. 
LifeQuest Drive, however, is not included in the current plan and does not need to be addressed at this time. Mr. 
Markward clarified that he raised the topic of LifeQuest Drive solely for Neighborhood Improvement District (NID) 
planning purposes. Mr. Vey asked whether the matter is one of timing, to which Mr. Hiser responded that it could 
be, though the situation is not definitive. For the NID process, both LifeQuest Drive and Abby Lane must eventually 
be dedicated. While the specific requirements for public dedication under the NID process remain unclear, 
dedicating Abby Lane makes sense given its role as a connector to Route 663. The issue of LifeQuest Drive will be 
addressed at the time of its dedication. The developer is obligated to contribute toward the roadway improvements 
on both the east and west sides. He suggested that if the matter is not explicitly indicated, it can be addressed after 
the bonds are sold. Abby Lane can be included, as its dedication as a public roadway is clearly stated. He does not 
believe it is necessary to mention LifeQuest Drive at this time, as its exclusion does not interfere with the LifeQuest 
organization or the NID’s ability to proceed with the planned improvements. Mrs. Harper stated that from the 
Board's perspective, in reviewing the land development plan, it makes sense to accept Abby Lane at the roundabout 
as part of this phase of the development. LifeQuest Drive is not included in the current plan and therefore does not 
need to be addressed or dedicated at this time. Condition 1 of the approval states: The Applicant shall show and 
construct a roundabout at Abby Lane and Mill Hill Court. Abby Lane was initially proposed as a private road, but 
the applicant, upon showing that the road has been constructed to Township standards may offer a Deed of 
Dedication to the road to the Township, and Township may, but shall not be required to, accept dedication of the 
road unless the Applicant can demonstrate that there is a maintenance plan in place for providing for future snow 
removal and maintenance. Mrs. Harper said they will need to come to an agreement on how maintenance will be 
handled, and snow removal could be an issue. Mr. Markward stated the condition as written is acceptable. Mr. 



Haberle asked how Section 525 will be handled. Condition states the plans must be revised to demonstrate 
compliance with the Milford Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Section 525 Park and 
Recreation Requirements, which requires recreational land and facilities sufficient to satisfy the ordinance for 262 
residential units. A waiver of this requirement may be granted for the construction of a trail acceptable to the Board 
of Supervisors or an acceptable contribution in lieu thereof. Mr. Haberle indicated that the engineer could provide 
further details regarding the shared trail plan. Mr. Vey noted that the plan has been refined to show the existing 
Breisch Road and a proposed trail marked by a red line. Mr. Markward expressed a desire to keep the process 
simple, suggesting that the proposed trail could satisfy the entire recreational requirement for all future phases. He 
proposed that it be noted that Section 525 may be considered waived for future development phases. Mr. Vey then 
asked whether there was any possibility that the proposed future development could change. He clarified that this 
current land development pertains specifically to the apartment phase, and that additional land development 
approvals will be required for subsequent phases as they are brought forward and there may be further need for 
recreation facilities depending on the proposed use of each section. Mr. Vey further explained that the timing of the 
trail's construction is not critical until the apartments are built and the Route 663 improvements are completed. 
However, he emphasized the importance of ensuring that the trail is constructed and that it is not excluded from 
financial security arrangements. Mr. Markward responded by acknowledging that if the necessary funds are already 
committed, the trail might as well be built. Mr. Hiser stated that Milford Village and LifeQuest comprise the 
remainder of the site, and the situation may become awkward. He asked how to ensure it gets built. Mr. Markward 
responded that the motion currently under consideration includes plans for an additional 500 units. He added that the 
proposed trail is acceptable for this phase of land development. Mr. Vey stated that the development should comply 
with Section 525 as it pertains to this site. Mr. Markward expressed concern that the trail is excessive for this 
specific project. Mr. Haberle emphasized that any future land development plans must align with the Seventh 
Revised Master Plan, or a revised plan would be required. Mr. Markward said he did not disagree with that and was 
agreeable as long as everyone is in agreement. Mr. Haberle clarified that this agreement pertains only to Sections 1 
through 5; Sections 6 through 9 are not included. He added that the trail would satisfy Section 525 for this portion of 
the development. Mrs. Harper noted that that agreement was being finalized at this meeting. Mr. Markward 
reiterated that there was general agreement among the parties. Mr. Vey stated that, in his opinion, the proposed trail 
aligns with the overall scope of the Master Plan Seven. Mr. Markward added that constructing the trail now would 
be more cost-effective and save money for all stakeholders. He noted that the trail construction would be phased 
along with the apartment development, and that a written agreement could be prepared and executed outside of this 
resolution. Mrs. Harper said that if the construction is phased, financial security can be provided for each phase. Mr. 
Markward clarified that the infrastructure would be completed in a single phase. Mr. Hiser asked whether this 
agreement impacts LifeQuest. Mr. Markward confirmed that it does not, and he recommended co-designing the trail 
with the township to ensure everyone is on the same page. Mr. Mininger concluded that all parties agree the 
proposed plan satisfies Section 525 of the current Master Plan Seven for Sections 1 through 5, with the 
understanding that any revisions to these sections may require additional recreation facilities in accordance with 
SALDO. 

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to approve Resolution No. 2025-11, granting Final Plan Approval of Land 
Development with Conditions, for the Milford Village Stonewall Apartments with revisions to Condition 1 
and additional language to Condition 5, along with approval of the requested waivers. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Strunk and passed unanimously.    

 
Correspondence: 
Bucks County Department of Health Mosquito Disease Control Program. Mr. Vey stated a request from the 
Bucks County Department of Health to participate in the Mosquito Disease Control Program has been received. As 
in previous years they will conduct surveillance on municipal properties and when necessary, treat areas to reduce 
mosquito activity.   

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to approve participation in the Bucks County Board of Health Mosquito 
Control Program. Mr. Stunk seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   

 
Fire Police Assistance Request(s). Mr. Vey reported Fire Police assistance requests have been received for the 
following: East Greenville Borough for the Memorial Day Parade taking place on May 26, 2025; Quakertown 
Borough for the graduation parade taking place on May 27, 2025 and graduation ceremony taking place on June 4, 
2025; Saint John’s Lutheran Church for the Strawberry Festival taking place on June 14, 2025; Sellersville Borough 
for the Sellersville Fire Department Carnival from July 8 through July 12, 2025; and Quakertown Borough for the 
Memorial Day Parade taking place on May 26, 2025.  



Mr. Mininger made a MOTION to approve the Fire Police Assistance Requests. The motion was seconded 
by Mr. Strunk and passed unanimously.  

 
Quakertown Area Planning Committee. Mr. Vey reported the minutes discuss the PennDOT Annual 
Transportation Meeting. Reviewed at the April 3, 2025 meeting was a Special Exception for Pro Shop FLL, LLC, 
Preliminary Plan of Land Development for Rotho Blaas USA, Inc, and Preliminary Plan of Subdivision of 
Brookfield Estates. The minutes are available for review.   
 
Bucks County Airport Authority Meeting Minutes. Mr. Mininger reported a lot of paving projects are planned for 
the Quakertown Airport. A grant has been applied for but awarding has not yet been announced.  
  
Milford Township Water Authority Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey reported the minutes of March 11, 2025 discuss 
routine business including escrow releases Naplin Two and Quaker Pointe Hotel. The Authority is waiting on the 
Comcast Well #5 Site lease agreement. Mr. Vey reported the watermain is in on Allentown Road and there are 
lateral issues which will be addressed in August. Mr. Mininger asked if the Allentown Road bridge project is still on 
schedule for mid-June. Mr. Haberle asked if they are replacing with 40-ton. Mr. Winkler stated they should be.  
 
Milford Trumbauersville Area Sewer Authority Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey reported the meeting minutes of 
March 17, 2025 discuss routine business and are available for review.  
 
Reports: 
Code Enforcement Departmental Report. Mr. Kravitsky presented the April 2025 Report. A total of 16 permits 
were issued in April: 10 residential renovations, 3 zoning, 2 commercial, and 1 driveway.  A total of 10 Use & 
Occupancy permits were issued and no Zoning Hearing Board Applications were received. 
 
Public Works Departmental Report. Mr. Winkler presented the April 2025 Public Works Departmental Report. 
Most of the month was spent with the Water Authority installing the watermain on Allentown Road. The main is 
complete and there are five laterals to install at this point. All developments and curbing were swept throughout the 
township. We removed large trees that fell across the walking path at the Streamview Development and salt 
spreaders and plows were removed and put away until next winter season. The new pump has been installed at the 
splash pad and the water vault needs to be cleaned along with some minor maintenance issues before opening day. A 
timer was installed so the pump will come on and go off at designated times. If the electricity goes out the pump will 
need to be reprogramed. The timer is a 24-volt timer. He will be talking to the electrician to see if solar power can be 
put on the roof with a battery backup to keep the pump from losing the programing. Mr. Vey asked if an 
uninterruptable power supply was looked at. Mr. Winkler questioned the automatic chlorinator whether it was solar 
powered or not. Mr. Malachowski stated a UPS system would be a better option than solar. Mr. Mininger asked if 
the two one lane bridges on Rosedale Road will be replaced as one lane bridges. Mr. Winkler stated at one time he 
met with the state and noted they will be replacing one bridge at a time. He will speak with Mike Qualey from 
PennDOT to see if he can offer any guidance. Mr. Vey stated he will be speaking to him about Bauman Road as 
well.  
 
Park Board Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey reported the Park Board meeting minutes of April 9, 2025 discuss 
maintenance issues and improvements. The butterfly garden is moving along. The Public Works Department has 
done a fantastic job removing invasives at the Molasses Creek Arboretum.  
 
Milford Fire Company Report. No report received.  
 
Trumbauersville Fire Company Report. A written report has been received and is available for review.  
Manager Reports. Mr. Vey stated he anticipates landowner agreements for riparian plantings for the St. Luke’s 
Hospital and Emerson properties to be discussed at the next meeting. The updated Comcast Franchise Agreement 
which must be done by Ordinance is also forthcoming.   
 
 
Escrow Release: 
Mrs. Ambron stated there are several escrow releases for consideration which include the following: Milford Village 
Stonewall Apartments, Route 663, TMP No. 23-010-175-001. Conditional Use, Final Escrow Release; Nace Minor 
Subdivision, Centennial Acquisitions LP., 1865 Allentown Road, TMP No. 23-010-144. Final Escrow Release; Turn 
14 Distribution, Rosenberger Road, TMP No. 23-010-023. Final Escrow Release; Rotho Blaas, 2075 Rosenberger 



Road, TMP No. 23-010-073. Conditional Use, Final Escrow Release; and Last Chance Ranch Inc., Allentown Road, 
TMP No. 23-021-052-005 and 23-021-053. Conditional Use, Final Escrow Release. 

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to approve the listed escrow releases. Mr. Strunk seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.   

 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items:  
Robert and Lynn McLain, residents of Angstadt Road, attended the meeting to raise concerns about abnormal and 
criminal behavior associated with a nearby property on Angstadt Road. For the purposes of this statement, the 
specific property will remain anonymous. Mr. McLain noted that he had previously sent an email to Mr. Vey and 
Mr. Kravitsky outlining the situation. He expressed his appreciation for their prompt response and efforts. He has 
had a conversation with the resident which led to a temporary mitigation of some of the issues. He wished to add a 
few points not included in his original communication. Mr. McLain reported that a white Cadillac has been parked 
on Angstadt Road since May 13th, following an incident that involved a response from four fire companies and the 
Pennsylvania State Police. He inquired whether the township would require the removal of the vehicle. He further 
described frequent gatherings at the property, often involving the resident’s grandson and four other military-aged 
males. These gatherings have increased over the past three months. He observed the individuals leave and return 
within minutes, suggesting behavior inconsistent with a routine trip to Wawa. Additionally, there has been confirmed 
drug use at the residence. Mr. McLain stated that he has spoken with several neighbors who are concerned about the 
drug activity, noise, and speeding in the neighborhood. He also spoke directly with the individuals involved but is 
now seeking guidance from the township on how to proceed. Mrs. McLain added that they have lived in Milford 
Township for over 20 years and have always appreciated the area's rural charm, peacefulness, road maintenance, 
snow removal, and timely responses from the township. She explained that while unusual activity began about a year 
ago, the intensity and frequency increased significantly in March of this year, including loud noise and vehicles 
racing along the road, which ends in a cul-de-sac. She recounted the May 13th incident, during which no fewer than 
four fire companies responded to what was described as an environmental situation. While she is not aware of the 
full details, she expressed interest in obtaining a full report. She emphasized that although individuals have a right to 
use their property as they see fit, provided it is legal, she no longer feels safe in the area, especially given its isolation 
and lack of nearby witnesses. Mr. Strunk asked whether anyone from the township had been to the property. Mr. 
Vey responded that there are ongoing developments, though he was unsure how specific he could be in a public 
meeting. He confirmed that the township is aware of a recurring pattern and is working toward a resolution. Mrs. 
Harper noted that Mr. Kravitsky has already visited the property for township code violations and should continue to 
do so. She advised Mr. McLain to notify Mr. Kravitsky when incidents occur and recommended contacting the State 
Police to make them aware of any suspicious activity. Mr. Kravitsky confirmed he had spoken with the State Police, 
who are aware of the situation and plan to increase patrols during evenings and weekends. He also clarified that the 
May 13th incident was reported as a burglary, and the fire department was dispatched due to a possible gasoline-
related hazard. Because it was classified as a burglary, the report is not publicly available. Mr. Kravitsky 
acknowledged seeing the white Cadillac and, upon learning how long it has been parked, agreed to monitor it more 
closely. He stated there are limits to what the township can do in this situation. Mrs. Harper inquired whether the 
elderly gentleman residing at the property has any other relatives and if the Area Agency on Aging has been 
contacted. Mr. McLain confirmed that he had contacted the agency but was unsure of the case’s current status. He 
noted that unfamiliar individuals have recently been seen at the property and may be conducting inquiries. Mr. 
McLain asked if any further actions were recommended. Mrs. Harper responded that it appears all appropriate 
channels have been pursued at this point. 
 
Mr. Bryan Malachowski of Breisch Road noted the Breisch Road walkway, the bridge, is bad with heavy rains and 
will need to be addressed. There is also a fallen tree from the center island. The pipe at the end of Breisch and 
Allentown Road is backed up again and needs to be attended to.  
 
Mr. Mininger announced the Board will meet in executive session to discuss potential property acquisition.  
 
Adjournment:  
With there being no further discussion Mr. Strunk made MOTION to adjourn the May 21, 2025 Milford Township 
Board of Supervisors meeting at 8:05 p.m. Mr. Mininger seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
 
 


